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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of NDTV Convergence Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of NDTV Convergence Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act. ‘

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. ‘

~

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
are free from material misstatement. ‘
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date-of the auditor’s report. However,

future events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018, its profit (including other comprehensive loss), changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. ‘

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act;
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g)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information.
and according to the explanations given to us: ‘

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations as on 31 March 2018 which would impact
its financial position; < .

{i. The Company has long-term contracts as at 31 March 2018, for which there were no material
foreseeable losses. The Company has no outstanding derivative contracts as at 31 March 2018;

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv. The disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not
been made since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2018. However,
amounts as appearing in the audited financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2017
have been disclosed — Refer to Note no. 39 to the Ind AS financial statements.

For BSR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registr_ation number: 116231W/ W-100024

Vs

Rakesh Dewan

Place: Gurugram Partner
Date: 11 May 2018 Membership number: 092212
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of NDTV
Convergence Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

(i) - (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this program,
certain fixed assets were verified during the year. As informed to us the discrepancies noticed on
such verification were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts. In
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company doe.;, not hold any
immovable property in its name. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(ii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not hold any physical
inventory. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ii1) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions
of paragraph 3 (iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loans
to any parties specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the
investments made by the Company are in compliance with section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

v) As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits as

" mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to

76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013, for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the
Order is not applicable.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, service tax, goods and services tax,
value added tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the
Company with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases
pertaining to income-tax. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of
duty of excise, duty of customs and employees' state insurance.

According to the information and explanations given to us. no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, income-tax, service tax, goods and services tax. value added tax, cess
and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2018, fora period of more than six months
from the date they became payable. '
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(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, except as stated below, there are no dues

of income tax, value added tax, service tax and goods and services tax which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute:

(Amount in Rs. million)

) Year to which . o

Name of the statue Nature of Amount amount. Forum.whel e dispute
the Dues is pending
: relates -

Income-tax Act, Commissioner of
1961 Incomg tax 18.85 AY 2012-13 Income Tax (Appeals)
Income-tax Act, ' Commissioner of
1961 Income tax 27.12 | AY 2013-14 Income Tax (Appeals)
Income-tax Act, ‘ A 1% Commissioner of
1961 Income tax 12.52 | AY 2014-15 Income Tax (Appeals)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and financial institutions. The Company did not have
any outstanding dues to any government or debenture holders during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Further, as explained to us, the
term loan raised in the previous year has been utilised for the purpose it was raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there has been no fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit. ‘

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the managerial remuneration has been provided/ paid by the Company in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable. ' ’

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him covered by Section 192 of the
Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants »
Firm registration number: 116231W/ W-100024

-~

Rakesh Dewan
Place: Gurugram Partner

Date: 11 May 2018 Membership number: 092212 .
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the financial statements of NDTV
Convergence Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NDTV Convergence Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
_exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting,
issued by the ICAL

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 116231 W/ W-100024

k@&

Rakesh Dewan
Place: Gurugram » . Partner
Date: 11 May 2018 Membership number: 092212
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NDTV Convergence Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018

(Al amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note Asat Asat ~ Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Assets
Non-current assefs
Property, plant and equipment 3 14.59 1541 12.51
Capital work-in-progress - - 0.36
Intangible assets 4 10,33 17.17, 24.18
Financial assets
Investments ’ ’ 5 107.39 57.29 131.92
Loans 6(a) 143.83 128.57 66.54
Other financial assets 12(a) - - 10.69
Deferred tax assets (net) 41 22.10. 1115 7.6%
Income tax assets (net) () 76.25 66.65 84.20
Other non-current asscts 8 0.82 0.82 749
Total non-current assets 37531 297.06 e~ 345.58
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 9 459.92 548.86 465.75
Cash and cash equivalents 10 251.06 62.90 34.40
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents mentioned above 11 29.83 5.10 31.67
Loans 6(b) 1.24 - -
Other financial assets 12(b) #2283 . 37.83 - 40.61
Income tax assets (net) 7b) 1.61 . - -
Other current assets 13 468.18 436.53 251.14
Total current assets 1,234.67 1,091.22 $23.57
Total assets 1.609.98 1.388.28 1.169.15
Equity and liabilities
Equity .
Equity share capital 14 0.67 0.67 0.67
Other ecuity 15 690.95 484.02 486.59
Total cquity 691.62 484.69 487.26
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16(a) 415.45 457.19 146.43
Other financial ligbilities 17(a) - - 10.83
Provisions 20(a) 21.87 15.09 1112
Other non-current liabilities 19(a) 39.78 - -
Total non-current liabilities 477.10 472.28 168.38
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrovings 16(b) 17.79 44.78 -
Trade payables 18 190.45 243.06 263.75
Other financial liabilities 17(b) 88,29 36.80 14431
Provisions 20(b) 1.93 0.60 0.44
Other current liabilities . 19(b) 142.80 106.07 105.01
Total current linbilities 441.26 431.31 513,51
Total labilities : 918.36 903.59 681.89
Total equity and liabilitics 1.609.98 1,388.28 1.169.15
The accom panying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For B § R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants NDTV Convergence Limited

Firm registration number: 116231W 1W-100024
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NDTV Convergence Limited
Statement of Prafit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2018

{All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended 31

Note 31 March 2018 March 2017
Tncome
Revenue from operations 21 1,382.25 1,213.65
Other income 22 62.49 37.61
Total inconie 1,444.74 1,251.26
Expenses
Cost of services 23 314.56 266.96
Employee benefits expenses 2 37270 325.07
Finance costs 25 : 75.80 68.12
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 ) 12,15 12.42
Operations and administration expenses 27 185.54 i 182.27
Marketing, distribution and promotion expenses 28 ' 175.74 -~ 202.05
Total expenses 1,136.49 1,056.89
Profit before exceptional items and tax 308.25 194.37
Exceptional items 29 . - 130.08
Profit before tax 308.25 64.29
Income tiux expense o
Current tax - o 11122 72,77
Deferred tax (9.78) (2.87)
Total tax expenses 101.44 69.90
Profit /(loss) for the year 206.81 (5.61)
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (3.39) (1.72)
Income tax relating to these items 1.17 0.59
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (2.22) (1.13)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 204.59 (6.74)
Earnings / (loss) per share
Basic camings/ (loss) per share (INR } 33 3,101.91 (84.22)
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share (INR ) 33 3,101.91 (84.22)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financinl statements

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 116231W /W-100024

5008
mﬂ”"’
Rakesh Dewan

Partner
Membership Number: 092212

Place: Gurugram

Date: 1| MAY 201%

\am

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
NDTV Convergence Limited
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Independent Director
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NDTV Convérgence Limited

Statement of Cash Tlows for the year ended 31 March 2018

(All amounts in INR m illions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before income tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit /(loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Tmpairment in the value of investment

Finance costs

(Gain)/loss on sale / disposal of property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress write off

Altowance for doubtful receivables

Employee Stock option expense

Bad debts written off

Interest income

Liabilities for operating expenses written back

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Loss/(gain) on fair valuation of investments

Cash generated from operations Dbefore working capital changes
Working capital adjustments

Change in trade reccivables

Change in loaus

Change in other financial assets

Change in other assets

Change in other non-current assets

Change in trade payables

Change in other financial liabilities

Change in other liabilities

Change in provisions

Cash generated from / (used in) operating activities
ncome taxes paid/deducted at source (net)

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from maturity of deposits with banks
Investment in deposits with banks

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repaynient of borrowings

Finance cost paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 10)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 10)

Notes to the Statement of cash flows:

() Cash and cash equivalents
Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- In current accounts
Deposits with banks having maturity of less than 3 months
Balances per statement of cash flows

308.25 64.29
1215 1242
- 130.08
75.80 68.12
(26.96) 0.04
- 036
2635 . 13.91
234 bt 417
5.64 13.56
(30.33) (14.87)
9.55) (5.29)
(0.32) 1.08
(5.10) (2.82)
358.27 285.05
- 57.45 T (111.52)
©0.72) (52.22)
15.71 (3227)
(31.65) (180.27)
- 6.67
(43.24) (15.53)
478 (19.62)
76.51 1.06
472 241
441.89 (116.24)
(122.44) (55.31)
319.45 (171.55)
(507 (6.82)
(45.00) (52.64)
2731 -
- 71.94
(24.72) -
13.78 5.44
(33.64) 17.92
- 550.00
(27.00) (250.00)
(70.65) (117.87)
(97.65) 152,13
188.16 28.50
62.90 34,40
251.06 62.90
0.08 0.02
4429 20.15
206.69 42.73
251,06 62.90
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NDTV Convergence Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)
Tor the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(b) Movement in financial liabilities®
3 Opening balance (including current maturities of long term debt) 501.97 244.04
Proceeds from borrowings - 550.00
Repayment of borrowings (27.00) (250.00)
Processing fees 5.15 938
Interest expense on borrowings 69.37 55,72
Interest accrued - 263
2 Finance cost paid (69.37) ) (58.35)
“Transaction cost - T (5145)
Closing balance 480,12 501.97
sAmendment to Ind AS 7: Effective 1 April 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that enable
4 users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changgs arising from cash flows and non-cash changes,
suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from finaricing activities, to meet the
disclosure requirement.
-~ .
P (c) The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows'.
As per our report of even date attached
For B S R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
k3 Chartered Accountanis NDTV Convergence Limited
Firm registration number: 116231W /W-100024
2 QM
Rakesh Dewan LLSau Kaushik Dutts
Partner C8°CLO, NDTV Group & Director Independent Director
Membership Number: 092212 DIN No: 06719699 DIN No: 03328890 -
W (‘ 0 o
Place: Gurugram Suparna Singh Ravi Asawa
E e o, s
Date: - CLEO, NDTV Grox, CFO, NDTV Group
H MAY 20ig M““’MJ
~Place: New Delhi
Date: “ ML%‘\ Bm%
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3 NDTV Convergence Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018
= (Al amounfs in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)
1) Equity Share Capital
E
Particulars Amounts
Balance as at L April 2016 0.67
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
1 Balance as at 31 March 2017 0.67
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 0.67
= 1) Other equity
2.
Reserve and suyplus Ttems of OCI °
. . Remeasurements of Y
Particulars . i remi are bas Total
Securities premium Share based Retained earnings defined henefit
reserve payment reserve . ..
obligations
” Balance as at 1 April 2016 236,35 37.74 21250 ) - 486.59
"Fotal comprehensive inconte/(loss) for the year
Profit/(loss) for the year - - (5.61) - (5.61)
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax | - - - (1.13) (1.13)
‘Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year -~ - L[(5.61) (113} (6.74
5 Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
4 Contributions by owners
Share-based payment - 4.17 - - 4.17
Total contributions by owners . ~ 4.17 - - 4.17
Balance as at 31 March 2017 i 236.35 41.91 206,89 (1.13) 484.02
Total compreliensive income/{loss) for the year
5 Profit/(loss) for the year - - 206.81 - 206.81
1 Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax . - - - (2.22) (2.22)
B . {Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - 206.81 " (2.22) 204,59
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions hy owners
- Share-based payment - 2.34 - - 2.34
8 Total contributions by owners - 2.34 . - - 2.34
Balance as at 31 March 2018 236.35 44.25 413.70 (3.35) 690.95
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fiunneial statements
o
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NDTV Convergence Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Reporting entity

NDTV Convergence Limited is a public limited Company:incorpora'_ed in India under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 with its registered
office situated in New Delhi. It commenced operations on 1 January 2007 with the purchase of existing website from New Delhi Television Limited,
its ultimate parent Company. The Company maintains and operates ndtv.com and other websites. The Company is also a content provider to Mobile
VAS operators.

Note 1 : Basis of preparation

&

b,

[

i,

€

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
Pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. . C~

The Company's financial statements up to aud for the year ended 31 March 2017 were prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified
under Companies (Accounting standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended), notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act.

As these are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Staudards has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported
financial position, financial performance and cash flows is provided in Note 43.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 9 May 2018.

Funetional and presentation currency

‘The financial statements arc presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off
to the nearest million, unless otherwise indicated. : ’

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets Fair value

Use of cstinates and judgements

In preparing the financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judgements »
The prepatation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual resuits. Management

exercises judgement in applying the Company's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of
these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together-with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the

financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

The areas involving critical estimates are:

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies;

- Estimation of defined benefit obligation;

- Estimated useful life of intangible assets;

- Fair value of barter transaction;

- Impairment test of non-financial assets; and

- Impairment of trade receivables and other financial assets.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that may have a financial-impact on the Compauy and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company preseiits assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on the current/non current classification.

An asset is treated as current when:

- It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

+ It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- 1t is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. The Company classifies all other assets as noh-current.
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& 4 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
A liability s treated as current when:
. - It is expected to be seitled in normal operating cycle;
- - 1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
- Tt is due to be settled within twelve monthis after the reporting period; or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Hability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. The Company classify all other Habilities as non-current.
E
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and Habilities respectively.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
24 identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
T~
f. Measurcment of fair values
A number of accounting policics and disclosures require the measurement of fair value for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
A
The Company has an established contro} framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer.
- .
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the
fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value Dierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in

the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement..

The Company recognise transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further the information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the note for financial instruments.

2
] Note 2 : Significant accounting policies
N Foreign currency
3 Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of Company at the exchange rate at the dates of the transactions or an
average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.
A .
Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value ina foreign currency are translated into the fimctional currency at the exchange rate
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.
b. Financial instruments
P Financial instrument is any contract that, gives rise to a financial asset of the entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of anather entity.
i Recognition and initial measurement .
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial Habilities are
a initially recognised when the Company becomes a paty to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
- A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. )
A .
ti. Classification and subsequent nieasurenient
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
- amortised cost;
2 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) — debt investment;
- FVOCI - equity investment; or
-FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost ifit meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

 the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and;

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amonnt outstanding. :
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A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of fhe following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment -by-invesiment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) as described above are
imeasured at FVTPL. On initial recoguition, the Company may irvevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be

measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise. .

Financial assets: Subsequent measurcment and gains and losses

‘IDebt investments at FVOCI : These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net
gaing and losses, including any interest or dividend income, A
are recognised in profit orloss. . v

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised
in profit or loss.

income under-the effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCL On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FYOCI Those asscts are subsequently measured at fair value.

Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represenfs a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Other net gains and losses are, recognised
Lﬁ in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial linbilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or foss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains- and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on

derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition:

Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to

receive the contractual cash flows ina transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial

asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its Balance Sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets ate not derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value, The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability extinguished and the new financial Hability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has

a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise thic asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement:
Items of property, plant and equipment are imeasured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accamulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. .

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchasé taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located. :

~
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment. '

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Transition 1o Ind AS: ) .
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of alf"of its propesty, plant and equipment récognised as at 1
April 2016, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant.and equipment.

Subsequent expendifure:
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only ifitis probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation: )
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method, and is generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The useful lives as estimated for tangible assets are in accordance with the useful lives as indicated in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 except
for the following classes of assets where difference uscful lives have been used:

Asset Class [ Useful life (in years
Computers i 36

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted-if appropriate. Based on technical
evaluation and consequent advice, the management belicves that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these asscts.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.c. from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).
Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement:
Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company in a business combination are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expendilure: :
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure, including expenditure on is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. o

Transition to [ind AS:
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2016,
measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such intangible assets.

Amorfisation:
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated uscful lives using the

straight-line method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Class Useful life (In years)
Website 6
Computer Software 6

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year-and adjusted if appropriate.
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Tmpairment

Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

_financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
-financial assets measured at EVOCL

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
scredit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; : ,
. a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 130 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the company would not consider otherwisc;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit Josses, except for the foliowing, which are measured as 12
= .

month expected credit losses: o
. debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.c. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has

not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are measured at an amount atleast cqual to the lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit Tosses that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

I all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is

exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit
losses, the Company considers rensonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including

forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the Balance Sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross cairying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or SOUrces of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to

comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company’s non-financial assets, other than income tax assets and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to detenmine whether

there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are Targely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to scll, Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time

value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To
determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.
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An impairment loss is recognised if the cartying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impainment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first o reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to veduce the catrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or Company of CGUs) on & pro rata basis.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at cach repotting date whether there is any
indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the exient that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. :

Employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits: ) )

Short-terin employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is pfovided. A liability is
recoguised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present fegal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in
the periods during which the related services are rendered by employecs. o

Defined benefit plan .

A defined benefit plan is a post-cmployment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plaus is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount. .

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in OCL. The Company determines the
net interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to meastre the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period, taking into account any changes in the defined benefit Tiability during the period as a result of benefit payments. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plan is vecognised in profit or loss. When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a
plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the pain or loss on curtailment
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement

oceurs.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw- the offer of those benefits and when the Company
recognises costs fora restructuring. If benefits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 mouths of the reporting date, then they are discounted.

Employee share based paymenis

The fair value of options granted under the Employee Stock Option Plan is recognised as an employce benefits expense with a corresponding increase
in equity.

The total expenses is recognised over {he vesting period, which is the period over which specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the service conditions. It recognises the impact
of revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with & corresponding adjustment to equity.

Provisions:

A provision is recognised if, as a vesult of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required t0 settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for. )

Revenue:

Revenue is measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net. of taxes, rebates, trade allowances and
amount collected on behalf of others,

Advertisement revenne:
The Company recognises revenuc from the display of graphical advertisements (“display advertising”) on the website as “impressions” are delivered.
An “impression” is delivered when an advertisement appears in pages viewed by vsers.

The Company recognizes revenue from the display of text based links to the websites of its advertisers (“search advertising”) which are placed on the
website. Search advertising revenue is recognized as “click thirough” occur, A ssclick-througlht” occurs whe @ user clicks on an advertiser’s listing.
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Revenue fiom evenls
Revenue from events is recognised as the services are provided.

Sale of License
Revenue from sale of licenses and services is recognized as per terms of contract when no significant uncertainty exists with respect to ultimate

collection.

Revenues from conlent
Revenue from content provided to Mobile VAS operators is recognized when services are rendered and no significant uncertainty exists with respect to

ultimate collection.

Barter transactions

Barter transactions are recoguised at the fair value of the consideration received or rendered. When the fair value of the transactions cannot be
inensured reliably, the revenue / expense is measured at the fair value of the goods / services provided or received, adjusted by the amount of cash or
cash equivatent transferred,

In the normial course of business, the Company enters into a transaction in which it purchases an asset of & service for business purposes and/or makes
an investment in a customer and at the same time negotiates a contract for sale of advertising to the seller of the asset or service, as the case may be.
Arrangements though negotiated contemporaneotsly, may be documented in one or more coniracts. The Company’s policy for accounting for each
transaction negotiated simultancously is to record cach clement of the transaction based on the respective cstimated fair valucs of the assets or services
purchased or investments made and the airtime sold. Assets which are acquired in the form of investments are recorded as investments and accounted
for accordingly. In determining their fair value, the Company refers to independent appraisals (where available), historical transactions or comparablc

cash transactions.

Lease:

Determining whether an arrangement conptains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease.

At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement are |
separated into those for the lease and those for other elements-on the basis of their relative fair values. If it'is concluded for a finance lease that it is
impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an assel and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset.

The liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finauce cost on the liability is recognised using the incremental borrowing rate.

Assels held under leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. The leased assets are measurcd initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to similar owned assets.

Assets held under Jeases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership (i.e. operating leases) are not
recognised in the Company’s Balance Sheet.

Lease paymenis ]

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight-ling basis over the term of the lease unless such payments
are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives
received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of the lease. :

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term SO as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the

liability.
Recognition of dividend income, inferest inconie or expense
Tnterest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial

instrument to:
- the gross cairying amount of the financial asset; ot
- the amortised cost of the financial tiability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have becoime credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired,

then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an
itern recognised directly.in equity or in other comprehensive income.
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Current 1ax .
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the lax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received afier
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. 1t is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. B

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is & {egally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. i

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also vecognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax is not recognised for: . )
- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combinagén and that affects
neither accousiting nor taxable profit or foss at the time of the transaction; .

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiarics, associates and joint arrangements 10 the extent that the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recoghised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits:will be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefdfe, in case of a history of recent losses; the
Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised,
are reviewed at cach reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the-asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. '

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying amouit of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current fax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of finds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash and cash equivalent:

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that ate readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafis ate shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the Balance Sheet. ‘

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

- the profit attributable to owners of the Company

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the

year.

Diluted earnings per share .
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic carnings per share to take into account
. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
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Contingent linbilities and contingent asscts

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or on occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the controt of thie Company or & present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settie or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

Contingent assets ar¢ not recognised however are disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. Contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in
the period in which the change oceurs. : '

Recent accounting pl'onouucements

Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers N

Nature of Change

Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users
of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers.
Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a promised good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obrain the benefits
from the good or service in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and
services. The standard replaces ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Constrnction contracts andrelated appendices.

A new five-step process must be applied before revenuc can be recognised:

1. Identify contracts with customers

2. Identify the separate performance obli gation

3. Determine the transaction price of the contract

4. Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate-performance obligations, and
5. Recognise the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

md AS 115 also introduces new guidance on, amongst other areas, combining contracts, discounts, variable consideration, modifications and require
that certain costs incurred in obtaining and fulfilling customer contracts be deferred on Balance Sheet and amortized over the period and entity expects

to benefit from customer relationship.

The adoption of the new standard may impact the timing of revenue recognition for revenue from digital media services. Further, what constitutes a
performance obli gation under the new standard maybe different than the current accounting revenue recognition principles.

The management is in the process of conducting a detailed accounting scoping analysis across the services within the Company's revenue streams.

The new standard also requires detailed disclosures regarding nature, timing and uncertainty of revenue transactions which is presently being assessed
by the management.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1 Aprit 2018 and early application is not permitted. The standard permits to
apply this standard using one of the following two methods: i

(a) retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or

(b) retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application.

Impact
The Company is in the process of assessing the detailed impact of Ind AS 115. Presently, the Company is not able to reasonably estimate the impact

that application of Ind AS 115 is expected to have on its financial statements, except that adoption of Ind AS 115 is not expected to significantly
change the timing of the Company's revenue recognition for sale of services.

Date of adoption
The Company intends to adopt the standard using the modified retrospective approach which means {hat the cumulative impact of the adoption will be

recognised in retained earnings as of 1 April 2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.
Appendix B to Ind AS 21- Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

Nature of change

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transaclions and advance consideration. The
appendix clarifies how to determine the date of transaction for the exchange rate to be used on initial recognition of a related asset, expense o income
where an entity pays or receives consideration in advance for foreign currency-denominated contracts.

For a single payment or receipt, the date of the transaction should be the date on which the entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or liability
arising from the advance consideration (the prepayment or deferred income/contract Hability). 1f there are multiple payments or receipts for one itent,
date of transaction should be determined as above for each payment of receipt.

The appendix can be applied:

- retrospectively for each period presented applying Ind AS 8

- prospectively to items in scope of the appendix that are initially recognised

a. on or after the beginning of the reporting peviod in which the appendix is first applied (i.e. 1 April 2018 for entities with March year-end); or
b. from the beginning of a prior veporting period presented as comparative information (i.e. 1 April 2017 for entities with March year-end).
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Impact
The Company is in the process of assessing the detailed impact of application of the above mentioned appendix to its foreign currency transactions.

Date of adoption

The Company intends to adopt the amendments prospectively to items in scope of the appendix that are initially recognised on or after the beginning of
the reporting period in which the appendix is first applied (i.e. from 1 April 2018). '

Amendments to Ind AS 12- Income taxes regarding recognition of deferred tax assets on unrealised losses

Nature of change

The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred taxes where an asset is measured at fair value and that fair value is below fhe asset’s tax base.
They also clarify certain other aspects of accounting for deferred tax asscts set out below:

- A temporary difference exists whenever the carrying amount of an asset is less than its tax base at the end of the reporting period.

- The estimate of future taxable profit may include the recovery of some of an entity’s assets for more than its carrying amount if it is probable that the
entity will achieve this. For example, when a fixed-rate debt instrument is measured at fair value, however, the eatity expects 0 hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and it is probable that the asset will be recovered for more than its carrying amount.

- Where the tax law restricts the source of taxable profits against which particular types of deferred tax assets can be recovered, the recoverability of
the deferred tax assets can only be assessed in combination with other deferred tax assets of the same type.

- Tax deductions resulting from the reversal of deferred tax assets are excluded from the estimated future taxable profit that is used to evaluate the
recoverability of those assets. This is to avoid double counting the deductible temporary differences in such assessment. .

An entity shall apply the amendments to Ind AS 12 retrospectively in accordance with Ind AS 8, However, on initial application of the amendment, the
change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may e recognised in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity; as
appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained carnings and other components of equity.

Impact

The management does not foresee any material impact on account of this amendment.

Date of adoption

The Company shall apply the amendments to Ind AS 12 retrospectively in accordance with Ind AS 8 with the. corresponding impact reéognised in
opening retained carnings as at 1 April 2018, based on the relief provided by the standard.
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Note 3 : Property, plant and equipment

! Tivnt e
Particulars Piant and Computers Office equipment Furniture and Vehicles Total
machinery fixtures
At cost or decmed cost (gross carrying amount) ’
B Deemed Cost at 1 April 2016 (vefer note 43) 3.01 8.01 1,06 ’ 0.03 0.40 12.51
: Additions 2.73 3.99 0.90 0.06 - 7.68
I Disposals - (0.05) - - - (0.05)
Balance at 31 March 2617 5.74 11.95 1.96 0.09 0.40 20.14
Additions 1.57 2.68 065 - - 490
Disposals - 0.48) (0.18) - - {0.66)
Balance at 31 March 2018 731 14,18 2.43 0.09 o 2,40 24.38
Accumulated depreciation
o ——
Particulars ! ]m“. and Computers Office equipment Furniture and Veliicles Total
machinery fixtures
Depreciation for the year 1.00 2.90 . 065 0.06 0.13 4,74
Deletion / Adjustments - (0.01) - - - (0.01)
j Balance at 31 March 2017 1.60 2.89 0.65 0.06 0.13 4.73
Depreciation for the year . 1.37 3.12 0:69 0.00 013 5.31
Deletion / Adjustments - (0.14) (6.11) - - (0.25)
= Batance at 31 March 2018 237 5.87 1.23 0.06 0.26 9.79
v Carrying amount (net)
Deemed costas at 1 April 2016 3.0t 8.01 1.06 0.03 ! 0.40 12.51
Balance at 31 March 2017 474 9.06 131 0.03 0.27 15.41
Balance at 31 March 2018 4.94 828 1.20 0.03 0.14 14.59

Notes: -
As at 31 March 2018, properties with a carrying amount of INR 14.59 million ( 31 March 2017 INR 15.41 million and ¥ April 2016 ¢ INR 12.51 million) are subject to first charge 0

secure financial institution / bank loans (refer note 16 and 40).

]
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(Al amounts in INR millions,

Note 4. Intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Particulars Computer Software Website Tatal
At cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount) .
Deented cost at 1 April 2016 (refer note 43) 13.02 11.16 24.18
Additions 0.67 - 0.67
Balance at 31 March 2017 13.69 11,16 24.85
Additions - - -
Balance at 31 March 2018 13.69 11.16 24.85
Accumulated amortisation -~
Pnﬁicttlars Computer Software Website Total
Amortisation for the year 470 293 7.68
Balance at 31 March 2017 4.70 2.98 7.68
Amortisation for the year '3.99 2.85 6.84
Balance at 31 March 2018 8.69 5.83 14.52
Balance at 1 April 2016 13.02 11.16 24.18
Balance at 31 March 2017 899 8.18 17.17
Balance at 31 March 2018 5.00 5.33 1033

Notes:

As at 31 March 2018, properties with a carmy
charge to secure financial institution / bank lo

e s,

unt of INR 1033 million (31 March 2017: INR 17.
ans (refer note 16 and 40).

17 million and 1 April 2016 IN

R 24:18 million) are subject to first
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Note 5: Non-current investments

Particulars Asat Asat Asat
* ) 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Unquoted

A) Inyestment in equity snstruments - associates (At cost

45,700 (31 March 2017: 45,700, 1 April 2016 32,314) equity shares of Indianroots Shopping Limited of

INR 10 (31 March 2017: INR 10, 1 April 2016: INR 10) cach, fully paid-up, net of impairinent in the value - - 129.95
of investment of INR 130.08 million (31 March 2017: INR 130.08, | April 2016: INR Nil ) million.

21,000 (31 March 2017: 21,000, 1 April 2016: 21,000) equity shares of Fifth Gear Ventures Limited of INR 10 each,

h 0.21 0.21 021

fully paid-up

25,000 (31 March 2017 25,000, 1 April 2016: 25,000) equity shares of On Demand Transportation Limited of INR 10 025 025 025
cach, fully paid-up = .
25,000 (31 March 2017:25.000, 1 April 2016: 25,000) cquity shares of Special Occasions Limited of INR 10 each, 025 025 0.5
fully paid-up - .
20,000 (31 March 2017: 20,000, 1 April 2016: 20,000) equity shares of Brick Buy Brick Project Limited of INR 10 0.20 020 020
each, fully paid-up i .
25,000 (31 March 2617:25,000,1 April 2016: 25,000) equity shares of Redster Digital Limited of INR 10 each, fully. 045 025 025
paid-up ; i
21,250 (31 March 2017 21,250, 1 April 2016: 21 1250) equity shares of OnArt Quest Limited of INR 10 each, fully ' 021 021 021
paid-up - ) :
B) Investmient in equity ins truments - subsidinries (At cost)

30,000 (31 March 2017: 30,000, 1 April 2016: 30,000) equity shares of Red Pixels Ventures Limited of INR 10 each, 030 030 030
fully paid-up : : :
30,000 (31 March 2017: 30,000, 1 April 2016 30,000) equity shares of SmartCooky Interet Limited of INR 10 each , 0.30 0.30 030
fully paid-up i i .
Quoted )

A) Investment in mutual funds ¢ (At fair value » throngh profit and loss) :
1306,435.331 (31 March 2017: 172,540,833, 1 Aprit 2016 Nil ) mutual fund units in Aditya Birla Sun Life Asset 105.42 5532 :
Management Company Limited (refer note 40 for investments pledged as securities) T T

Total non-current investments . - 107.39 57.29 131.92
Fotal non-current investnients

Agaregate book value and market value of quoted investments 10542 55.32 -
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 197 1.97 131.92

Aggregate amount of jmpairment in the value of investments . 130,08 130.08
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Note 6a: Loaus
Non-Cuvvent

{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

. Asat Asat Asat
Partiolars 31 March2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Security deposits
-« Considered good 143.83 128.57 66.54
- Considered doubtful 0.69 0.69 0.69
144,52 129.26 67.23
Less: Loss allowance (0.69) {0.69) (0.69}
143.83 128.57 66,54
Refer note 32 on financial risk management T~
Note 6b: Loans
Current
ggnse:r:urcdl considered good unless otherwise stated)
Pariculars Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Security deposits 1.24 - -
. (124 - -
Refer note 32 on financial risk management
Note 7a: Income tax asset { net)
Non current
Particalars - Asat As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Incon‘fe tax asset {net of proyi;ion ofincome tax INR 264.87 million (31 March 2017; INR 226.42 million, 76.25 66.65 3420
1 April 2016: INR 153.64 million)} -
Total non current fax assets 76.25 66.65 84.20
Note 7b: Incomie tax asset { net)
Current -
Asat Asat Asat

Particulars

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

fncome tax asset {net of provision of income tax INR 72,77 mitlion (31 March 2017: INR Nil, 1 Apri

Total current tax assets

Note 8: Gther non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

1.61

1.61

Particulars - Asat Asat : Asat
) N 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Advances recoverable 0.82 0.82 7.49
0.82 0.82 749
Note 9: Trade receivables
Particulars Asat Asat Asat
b ) 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Considered good 459.92 548.86 465,75
Considered doubtful 54.36 34.84 32.08
514.28 583,70 497.83
Loss allowance for trade receivable (54.36} (34.84) (32.08)
459.92 548.86 465.75
Refer note 32 for exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances and note 40 for debors pledge as securities.
Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:
Asat Asat Asat

_Particulars

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

Trade receivables from related parties®

*Refer note 40 for debtors pledge as securities.

137.89

195.12

16147

137.89

195,12

16147
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Note 10: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- In current accounts
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months
Cash and cash equivalents in balance sheet

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows

Note 11: Bank balances other than cash and eash equivalents

Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
0.08 0.02 0.07
44.29 20.15 14.26
206.69 42.73 20.07
251.06 62.90 34.40
251.06 34.40

6290 e

}

el

ol

Particulars Asat Asat As at
A ? 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Deposits with banks due to mature within 12 months of the reporting date 29.83 5.10 31.67
29.83 5.10 31.67
Note 12a: Non-Curvent - other financial asscts
(Unsecured, considered good)
Particulars Asat Asat Asat
) ’ 31 March 2018 31 March 2617 1 April 2016
Deposits with banks due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date - B 0.82
Margin money deposits . - - 9.55
Interest accrued on fixed deposits - - 0.32
- - 10.69
Note 12b: Current - other financial assets
(Unsecuret, considered good)
Particulars Asat Asat Asat
) 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Unbilled revenue 21.82 3759 5.00
Margin money deposits - - 35.00
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 1.01 0.24 0.61
22.83 37.83 40.61
Note 13: Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stafed)
Asat Asat Asat .

Particulars

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

Advances recoverable

Dues recoverable from government
Employee advances

Prepaid expenses

2.01 L75 1.85
6.00 2538 16.08
1.27 1.25 2.06
458.90 408.15 231.13
468,18 436.53 251.14
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Convergence Limited
) {he financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
ints in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

5::0ther equity

Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
iities premium® 23635 236.35 23635
Share based payment reserve” . 44.25 41.91 37.74
Retained earmings® 410.35 205.76 212.50
-090.95 484,02 486.59
) Securitics premium '-7‘
i Pﬁrﬁculnrs Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Opening balance 236.35 236.35
Closing balance 236.35 236.35

Seeurities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pt

b) Share based pavment reserve

Particulars As at Asat

¢ 31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017
Opening balance 4191 37.74
Charge for the year 2.34 4.17
Closing balauce 44.25 41,91

Share based payment reserve comprises the value of equity-settled share based award provided to employees and non-employees as part of their remuneration.

¢) Retained earnings

Particulars Asat ‘ Asat

31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
QOpening balance 205.76 212,50
Net profit/(foss) for the year 204.59 (6.74)
Closing balance 410.35 205.76

Retained earnings are the profits / (loss) that the Company has earned till date and it includes remeasurement of defined benefit obligations.
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Nofe 16a;: Nou-current borrowings

" . As at Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Term loans o
From financial institution/bank
Secuired #
Indian rupee loan from a financial institution/bank (refer note (a)) 462.33 457.19 244.04
462.33 457.19 244.04
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (46.88) - (97.61)
Total non-current borroewings 41548 457.19 14643
Note 16h: Current borrowings
et 3 Asat Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Seeured o~
Working cgpital loan (refer note (a)) # 17.79 44.78 - -
Total current borrowings 17.79 44.78 -

Note (a):
The nature of security and terms of repayment are as per sanction letter are shown below:

Nature of seeurity |

Terms of repayment

The term loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited amounting to INR 500 million and working|
capital loan amounting to INR 23 million (31 March 2017: term loan of INR 500 million and
working capital loan of INR 50 million, 1 April 2016: tenn loan of INR Nil and working capital
loan of INR Nil ) is seeured by

1) Charge on all trade receivables and fixed assets of Company, inter alia:

- Pledge of irivestments of INR 97.5 million (31 March 2017: INR 52 50 million, 1 April 2016:
INR Nil ) in mutual funds (refer note 5).

2) The ultimate holding company and the holding company have issued an unconditional and|
irrevocable guarantees in favour of the Company to the extent of INR 550 million (31 March 2017:
INR 550 million, 1 April 2016: INR Nil) each. These guarantees are valid till the tenure of the
loan.

3) The ultimate holding company has created a charge in favour of lender on its properties of INR
50 miltion,

Term lozn of INR 500 million is payable in 32 equal quarterly
instalments amounting - to INR 1563 million each after
moratorium of 24 months from the date of last disbursement.

Effective rate of interest as on March 31, 2018 is 13% per
annum (31 March 2017: 13% per annum, 1 April 2016: Nil.)

‘The term Joan from Yes Bank Limited amounting to INR Nil ( 31 March 2017: INR Nil, 1 April
2016: INR 250 million) is sécured by (this Yes Bank loan was repaid in June 2016) :

1) Charge on all current and fixed assets of the Company, inter alia:

a) Fixed deposits with bank of INR Nil { 31 March 2017: INR Nil, 1 April 2016: INR 35 million)
under tien with bank.

1) Fixed deposit with bank of INR Nil (31 March 2017: INR Nil, 1 April 2016: INR 9.45 million)
equivalent to 3 months interest on term loan under lien with bank.

2) The ultimate holding company and the holding company have issued an unconditional and
irrevocable guarantees in favour of the Company to the extent of INR nit (31 March 2017: INR nil,
1 April 2016: INR 350 million and INR 300 million) respectively, These guarantees are valid till
the tenure of the loan.

3) The ultimate holding company has created a charge in favour of bank on its under construction
properties of INR Nil (31 March 2017 INR Nil, 1 April 2016: INR 50 million).

SIS 4

s

s R

Term loan of INR 300 million is payable in 36 equal monthly
instalments amouriting to INR 833 million each after
moratorium of 12 months from the date of first disbursement.

Rate of Interest is bank's base rate plus 1.75% per annum
payable on monthly rests. Effective rate of interest as on 31
March 2018: Nil, (31 March 2017: Nil, 1 April 2016: 12%
per annum. ) :

# For assets pledge as securities refer note 40 and refer note 32 on financial risk management.

Note 17a: Non-current- other financial liabilities

Particulars Asat Asat Asat
b ‘ 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Security deposit - - 10.83
- - 10.83
Note 17h: Current- other financial liabilities
Particulars Asat Asat Asat
* 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note no.16a) 46.88 - 97.61
Book overdraft - 037 . -
Payable against purchase of fixed assets 1.81 1.98 0.46
Interest accrued on borrowings - - 2.63
Payable to employees 39.60 34.45 43.61
88.29 36.80 144.31




NDTY Convergeunce Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 18: Trade payables

. As at Asat Asat
Particula ¢
artieuiars 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017, 1 April 2016
Trade payables .
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (see note below) 0.10 0.13 0.11
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 19035 242,93 263.64
19045 243.06 263.73
Refer note 32 for Company exposure to Currency and Liquidity risk related to trade payable
Notes ’
Disclosures in relation to Micro and Small enterprises "Suppliers" as defined in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 C~
. Asat Asat Asat
Particalar: :
Artiediars 31 March 2018 31 Mach 2047 1 April 2016
(i) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplics as at the end of the year 0.10 0.13 0.11
(if) the interest due on the principal remaining outstanding as at the end of the year . . .
(iii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year N : N .
{iv) the amount of the payment made to micro and small supplicrs beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year . - - -
(v} the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develop Act, 2006; _ . N
(vi) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year _ . B
(vii) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Davelopment Act,
2006. . - - -
Note 19a: Other non-curvent kabilities
Pavticulars Asat Asat Asat
° i 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Deferred income ‘ 39.78 - -
39.78 - -
Note 19D: Other current liabilities
Particulars Asat . Asat Asat
) 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 - 1 April 2016
Deferred income ' 119.80 87.89 92.10
Statutory dues payable 22.40 17718 12.25
Advances from customers 0.58 0.40 0.66
Advance against sale of investment 0.02 - -
142.80 106.07 105.01
Note 20a: Provisions- non current
. Asat Asat Asat
Particular:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Gratuity 21.87 15.09 11.12
21.87 15,09 1112
Note 20b: Provisions- current
. Asat Asat Asat
Particular
artiewiars 31 Mareh 2018 31 Mavch 2017 1 April 2016
Gratuity 1.93 0.60 0.44
193 0.60 0.44




NDTV Convergence Limited
Notes (o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Al amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 21: Revenuc from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Revenue from operations

Advertisement revenue 1,133.30 996.58
Mobile VAS revenue 173.66 164.82
Event revenue 2292 18.89
Consultancy 16.49 26.73
Sale of license 25.29 1.25
Other business inconie 1.04 0.09
1,372.70 T 1,208.36

Otlier operating revenue '
Liabilities for operating expenses written back 9.55 5.29
9,58 5.29
Total revenue from operations 1,382,235 1,213.65

Note 22; Other income

Particulars

For the year.ended.
31 March 2618

Tor the year ended
31 March 2017

Interest income measured at amortised cost

- Fixed deposits 14.55 5.06
- Others 15.78 9.81
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment '26.96 -
Gain on fair value of mutual fund 5.10 2.82
Miscellaneous income 0.10 1992
62.49 37.61

Note 23: Cost of services

[ <~ Y

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 Mavch 2017

Consultancy and professional fees 53.30 11.78
Hire charges 0.15 0.42
Subscription, footage and news service 43.46 51.13
Website hosting and streaming 103.42 115.06
Trade mark/License fee 14.10 12.40
Production expenscs 74.54 52.87
Software expenses 16.68 16.55
Travelling 3.91 6.73
Stores and spares - 0.02

314.56 266.96

Note 24: Employee benefits expense

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Salaries, wages and bonus 344,90 300.03
Expenses related to post employment defined benefit plan (refer note 35) 774 3.01
Contribution to provident and other funds 17.03 15.83
Staff welfare expenses 1.59 2.92
Share based payment expenses 1.44 3.28

37270 328.07

— SR
e



NDTV Convergence Limited
Kotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
{All amounts in INR miilions, uniess otherwise stated)

Note 25: Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Pavticulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Interest expense on borrowings 69.37 55.72
Interest expenscs on others 0.41 0.57
Bank charges 0.46 2.07
Guarantee charges 0.41 0.38
Processing fee 5.15 9.38
7580 6812

Note 26: Depreciation and amortisation expeunse

Particulars

Yor the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5.31 494
Amortisation on intangible asseis 6.84 7.68
12.15 12,42

Note 27: Operations and administration expenses

[ UUUO—— -.
e

For the year ended

For the year ended

(a) Auditors remuneration

Parficulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Rent (refer note 37) 21.29 19.86
Rates and taxes 2.71 3.95
Eleetricity and water 522 5.89
Printing and stationery 0.10 0.19
Postage and courier 0.29 0.11
Local conveyance, travelling and taxi hire 15.14 16.07
Business promotion 1.33 2.08
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery 1.04 121
Building G.14 0.1t
Auditors’ remuneration” 1.02 1.03
Insurance 8.03 6.54
Communication 4.01 7.05
Vehicle running and maintenance 9.95 13.15
Provision for doubtful debts 26.35 13.01
g Bad debts written off 1247 2471
T . Less: Adjusted against provision (6.83) 5.64 (11.15) 13.56
Legal, professional and consultancy 79.99 68.29
Foreign exchange fluctuations (net) 1.36 3.13
Loss on sale / disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.04
Capital work- in- progress writien off B 0.36
7 Miscellancous expenses 1.93 5.74
185.54 182.27

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

As Auditors

E Audit fee 0.95 0.95
Reimbursement of expenses 0.07 0.08
1.02 . 1.03

Note 28; Marketing, distribution and promotion expenses

[ 1.\
e

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Digital marketing for desktop and mobile websites 6811 8040

Mobile VAS 81.98 89.17

b Others 25,65 3248
175.74 202.05

Note 29: Exceptional items (Net)

e e e
e

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Impairment in the value of investment (refer note 5 and (a))

130,08
130.08

During the previous year the Company has secorded an impairment loss of INR 130.03 million in the value of its investment in Indianroots Shopping Limited. The above
k! impairment loss has been provided based on the Company's assessment of carrying value of assets over the assets recoverable amount or the value in use (whichever is higher}
Ei amounting to INR,130.08 million during the year ended 31 March 2017
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NPTV Consergence Limited
Noies to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2048
(All amounts in INR millions, unless othernise stated)

Nute 315 Capital nanagement

1 and to optimise retums to its sharcholders. Th

ket confidence.

The Compumy 1
and dag-to-day needs with a fosus en total equ

rages its capitol so as fo safeguard its ability to continee &
ity so as 1o maintain investor,

capital strueture of the Company is based on menagentent’s judgenent of its straiegic

The Company meniters capital using a ratio of “Net Deb(” to *Total Equity”, For this purpase, Net Debt is defined as total borrowings less cash znd cash cquivalents. Total cquity compriscs of equity share capital and ether equity.
During the finansicl year ended 31 March 2018, no significant changes were mede in the objectives, policies or processes refating to the management of the Company’s capital structure.

The Company's Net Debt fo Tatal Equity ratio Is as followss
N

Particulars Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 Mavch 2017 1 April 2016

501.97 244.04
.40)

Totel borrowinps
1.e35: Cash and cash cquivalents
Net debt 229.06

Koty shace capital 0.67 0.67 0.67
Chher equity 690.95 484.02 486.39
Total Equity 691.62 484,69 487.26

Net Debt to Total Equity ratio . 0.33 091 0.43

Note 32: Financial fair values and financlal rith management

A. Accounting classifications and fair values
‘The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair valuos of financial assels and finoncial liabilitics, including their levels in the fair value hicrarchy.

(i} As on 31 March 2018 -

Carrying value Fair value measurcment usi
FVIPL FVOCI Amortised cost_| Total I Level'T

Particulurs Note

Financial asscts - Non current
Investments® 5
Mutual funds 105.42 - - 105,92 105.42 - -
Security deposits €a - - 14383 14383 - - 14383
Financial assets - Current
Trade recéivablest* 9 - - 459.92 459.92 - - 439.92
Cash 2nd cash equivalents®* 10 - - 251.06 25106 - - To25106
Bank balances otker than cash and cash equivalents i .
mentioned above** - - 2983 29.83 - - 2983
Scourity deposits*® 6b - - 124 1.24 - - 124
Other financial assets )
- Unbilled revenue®® 12b - - 21.82 2182 - - 2182
- Interest acerued on fixed deposits®® 12b - - 101 1.01 - - 1.01
Total 10542 - 908.71 1,014.13 105.42 - 308,71
Financial liabilitics - Non current
Borrowings 16a - - 41545 41545 - - 41545
Finaneial labifities - Current
Borrowings 16h - - 1779 17.79 - - 17.79
Trade payables®® 18 - - 19045 15045 - - 190,45
Other finan fabilities .
- Current maturitics of fong tenn borrowings* 176 - - 46.88 46.88 - - 16.88
~ Payable against purch: f fixed assetst 176 181 1.81 - - 181
- Payable to employees®® 176 - - 39.60 39.60 - - 39.60
Total - - 711,98 711.98 - - 711,98
(ii) As on 31 March 2017
s 1 Carrying value T Falr value measurement using
Note T FvoCt Smoriised ot | ol | Levell _ [ Level2 ol 3
Financial assets - Non current N
Investments® 3
Mutual funds 3 - - 55.32 o553 - -
a ¢ deposits Ga - - 128.57 128.57 - - 128.57
i assets - Current
Trade receivables®® 9 - - 548.86 548.86 - - 548.86
Cash and cash equivalems®® 10 - - 6250 62.90 - - 62.50
s ak teilanees othor than cash and cash equivalents i
: mentioned above** - - 5.10 510 - - 3.30
Other financials asseis
F- - Unbilled revenue®* 12b - - 3759 37.39 - - 37.59
- Interest accrued on fived deposits®? 12b - - .24 0.24 - - 0.24
Total §5.32 - 783.26 838.58 532 - 783.26
Financial labilitics - Non current
Borrowings 162 - - 43719 457.19 - - 437.19
5 Finanefal Habilities - Current
Borrowing 160 - - 4478 4478 - -
“Trade payables®® 18 - ) - 24306 243,06 - -
F. Other finencial labilities
- Book overdraft*® 17b - - 0.37 0.37 - - 0.37
- Payzble against hase of Fixed assets®* 17h - - 198 198 - - 198
- Payable to employees®® 17b - - 3445 3445 - - 3445
Tatal - - 781.83 781.83 - - 781.83




NDTV Convergence Limited
Notes o the Gnancial statements for the year ended 31 Masch 2018
(Al amaunts in INR milfans, unless atherwise stated)

(i) Ason 1 April 2016

i Carrying value 1 Tair value measurement using
articuls N : A__‘____.r_b__-—.j
{‘ articulars Nate T TViPL L fvocl 1 Amortised cost [ Total I Lovell Level 2 Tevel 3

Financial assets - Non current ;
Security deposils 62 - - 66.54 66.54 - - 66.54
Other finaneizl assets .

- Bepesits with banks due to mature after 12

wmonths of the reporting date 120 - - 082 082 - . 082
- Marpin money deposits 12a - : - 9.55 9.55 - - 9.55
- Tntcrest accrued on fixed deposits {2z - - 032 0.32 - - 032
Financfal assets - Current ’
Teade receivables®? 9 - - 463.75 465.75 - - 463.75
Cash and cash cquivalents®® 10 - - 34440 3440 - - 34.40
Bank halances other than cash and cash equivaleats I
mentioned above** - - 3167 3167 - - 3167
ther financial assets
- Unbilled revenue®* 126 . - . 500 5.00 - - 500
- Margin mosey deposits 12b - - 3500 3500 - - 3500
- Interest acerued on fived deposits*® 12b - - 061 0.61 - - . C61
Total - - 649,66 649.66 - i - 649.66
Financial Habilitics - Non current
Borrowings 162 B - 146.43 146.43 - - 13643
Security deposits - 17 - - 10.83 10.83 - - 10.82
Financial Habilities - Current
Trade payables®* 18 - - 263.75 263.75 - - 263.75
Crher financial fiab!
- Current matusities of long tenn borrowings® 17 - - 97,61 91.61 - - 97.61
- Payable against perchass of fixed essetst 17b - - 046 .46 - - 046
- Interest acerued on borrowings** 1¥) - - 263 263 o - 2.63
- Payable to employees** 17 - - 43.61 - 43.61 - - 43.61
Total - - 565.32 565.32 - - 865.32
* 1t excludes i in subsidiarics and fotes which ate 3 51 deemed cost on the date of transition 1o Ind AS e, 1 April 2016.
** The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash snd cash equivalents, bank balazces other than eash and cash cquivalents, margin moncy deposits, deposits with benks due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date, loasts,
security deposit, interest acenved on fined deposit, Inteses sablo, unbilled revenue, trade peyables, payable 1o employees, cusrent maturity of long term borrowings, payeble agaiast purchase of fixed assets. interest acerued on

borrowings and unpaid dividend approximates the fair values due to their sheri-term nature.

Fuir values are categorised into different Jovel in fair salus hicrarehy based on the inputs used in the vehuation techniques as follows.

Lew cuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets or labilities.
Level puts other than quoted prices included in fovel 1 that are observable for the asset or Hability, either directly (i.c.as prices) or indireatly (i.c. Garived from prices).

Level 3 tinpuis for the asset or liabitity that are not tased on observable market data (wobservable inputs).

There has becn no ransfers benween Level 1, Level 2 and Levet 3 for the years ended 31 March 2018 .31 March 2017 and 1 April 2016.
Valustion techulque used to defermine fair value

Specifie valuation techniques used (o value financiol instrwnents nelude:

- the fair value of investment in quoted mutual fimds is based on the current bid price of respective investment as at the Balance Shect date.
- the fair value of the remaining financial instraments is determined using discouated cash flow methed.
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RDTV Convergence Limited
Nates to the financlal statements for he vear ended 31 March 2018
(Al amounts in INR millions, unless othernise stated)

B, Finaneial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following arising from financinl instruments:

- Credit risk
i ty 1isk

- Foreipn currency

- Market Risk - Interest rate

() Risk management framework

for the ish and oversight of he Company”s risk managenient framework.

The Company™s key has overall

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and annlyse the risks fced by the Compang to set appropsiate risks limils and controls and to inonitor risks and cdherence to limits. Risk menagement policies

are reviewed regulerly o reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s aclivitics. The Company through its training and 2 ds and p I aims to mabitain & disciplined and construetive control
i in which emptoy d d their roles and obligations.
(ii) Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carvying amount of these finencial assets in the Balanee Sheet
-

. Asat Asat Asat -
Particula

foutars 31 March 2018 31 March 2047 1 April 2016
Investmenis 10542 55.32 -
Trade receivables 459.92 548.86 465,75

25106 62.90 3440

Rank balances other than cash and cash equivaleats B
mentioned above 29.83 510 3167
Loans 14507 128.57 66.59
Other financial assets 2283 37.83 5130
Credit risk is the risk of financial less to the Company i 2 customer or caunter-party fails ©o meet its 1 obligations. Credit risk p: ot the disect risk of defoult and the risk of deterioration of credit worthiness

as well as concentration of risks.

Credit risk on cash and cash squivalents ond bank deposits is limited as the Company generally deals with banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rafing agencies. Investments primarify include investment in
arily represents imterest free seeurity depesits refundable on the completion of the term as per the contract. The credit risk associnted with such depasits s refatively low.

muteal funds. The loans pri

% to compate the axpected credit loxs allowancs for trade reccivables. The provision matriy fakes into account

sinnest loss.The Compeny uses & provisicn mul
wess envireament in which the Company operales, mansgement considers that the trade receivables are in defmalt

rical expericnce for customers. Based en the bu

The Company wsas expected credit foss model to zssess the
avnilable internal eredit risk factess such as the Company’s bi:
(credit impaired) if the payments are mare thon 180 days past due.

Trade receivables as at year end includes INR 137.89 roillicn (31 March 2017: INR 195.12 miltion, [ April 2016: INR 161.47 million) s amount recoverable from selated parties and INR 376.39 million (31 March 2017: INR
88 59 million, 1 April 2016: INR 336,36 miltion) recoverable from others.

The Company believes that amount receivable frem related parties is collestible in fill, based en historicsl payment behaviour and henee no loss allowance has been Tecopnized on the same. The Company’ based upen past trends
b

an impai il for losson T from: others.




NDTV Convevaence Linited
Notes 16 (he finmncial statements fov the vear ended 31 March 2018
(Sl aumunts in INR millions, unless atherwise stated)

vement in the allowange for impairment in respect of trade receivables is as follows:

Asat Asat.
Partioulars 31 March 201831 March 2017
Balance as at heglnning of the year 34.84 32.08
Loss allowance created 2635 1391
Amounts written off during the year . (6.83) (1113
Balance as at fhe end of the year 54.36 34.84

sclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of defautt und expecicd loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions end selecting the inputs to the
past history, existing morket conditions as well as forward focking cstimates ot the end of each reporting period,

The impairment provisions for financial assets
impairment caleulation, based on the Company’

(iif) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Coimpany will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial Habitities that are settted by delivering exsh or another finaneial asset. The Company’s approach ta manage
het it will have sufficient Haquidity to meet fis Habilitics when tisey are due, under both normal and tressed conditions, without incurring unaceepiable losses or risking damage to the

liquidity is fo cnsure, as far as possible,
Company's reputation.

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivaleats and other highty smarketable equity investments at an amount in excess of expested cash outflows on financial Habilities over tMBvnext six months. The
Company also monitors the levet of expected cash inflows on trade receivables and foaus together with expected cash outflows on trade payables and other financial Hbilites.

Exposurc to liquldity risk

The foilowing are the remaining eontractust maturitics of fnancial liabilities at the reporting date. The contractual cash low amounts are gross and undiccounted.

i

N

As at 31 March 2018 Carrying Less thanene  Befween z?nc and  More {Imn flirce ‘Contractual cash
unount year three years years flow
(including current it 462.33 4687 125.00 328.13 300.00 =
Current borrowings 17.79 2360 . - - 23.00
Trade payables 190.45 190.43 - - 19045
Other financial linbilities 4141 4141 - - 4141
1198 30173 32813 75486
As 2t 31 March 2017 Carrying Less fhan one  DBetween one and  More than three Contractual eash
antount year three years years flow
Borrowings (including current mariti 457.19 - 109.37 390.63 500.00
Current borrowings 36.00 - - 50.60
Trade payables 243,06 - - 243.06
Other fimaneial Habilities 36.80 3680 - - 36.80
781.83 329.86 109.37 390.63 §29.86
Sarsyi Less th fiye cand 1 2 2
Asat 1 April 2016 Carsying Less ’h.m one  Befween :.m«. and  More 'llnn three  Contractuaf cash
amount year three years years floww
B ings (including eurrent maturitics) 25404 100.60 150.00 - 230.60
Trade payables 26375 26375 - - 263.75
Other financial lisbilities 57.33 57,53 - - 37.33
565.32 421,28 150.00 - 571.28

(iv) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of'a financial insirument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk namely: cumency risk and interest rate he objective of

market #is mmmgmumv.islmmnagenndcumm}markclrisk 5 within aceeptatle p while optimising the return.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk s the risk that the future cash flows of a finaneial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market interest rtes. The Company’s exposure fo the risk of' changes in market interest rates relotes primarily to
the Company”s borrowings with floting interest rates.

Exposure to Interest rate risk
“The Company’s interest rete risk arises majorly from borrowings carrying fioating rate of interest. These borrowings exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk, The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate
changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are s follows:

Asat Asat Asat

Variable rate Instruments 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

“Term loan 462,33 457.19 244.04
Working capital foan 17.79 4178 -
Total 480,12 §01.97 244,04

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
A reasonzbly possible change of 0.50 % in interest rates at the reporting date would have affected the profit or loss by the amounts shown belaw.

Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars c by
o Increase by 0.50% Decrease by

0,50%
Tnerease/ (deerease) in Interest en barrow ings
For the year ended 31 March 2018 240 Q.40
For the vear ended 31 March 2017 2.51 251

The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the bosrowings outstonding at the end of the year was outstanding for the whole year.




NDTV Convergence Limited
Notes to fhe financial statements fox the vear ended 31 Ml 2018
(All amounts in INR miillions, unless othierwise statedy

() Corrency tik

suse of changes in foreig ex ¢ rates. The Campany 15 exposed (o the effest £ fluctuztion in the prevailing foreign cursency
: rate fuctuations berween the funetional curreney (INR) and other currencics USD-from the Cempany’s operating, investing ond

Cusreney risk is the risk thet the future cash € of & financial instrument will Juetuate be
exchange rates on its finencial position and cash flows. Exposire arises primarily duz to exchan,
finencing activities,

Unhedged exposure to foreigh currency risk

The Company"s exposure in sespect of foreign currency denominated financial Hobitities not hedged by derivative instnuments of others as follows-

As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 As at 1 April 2016
Amwount in forel; Amount in forcign Aottt in
Currency % ExchangeRate  Amount in INR 21 ExchangeRate  Amountin INR forcign Exchange Rate  Amount in INR
currency curreney
- CUrrency
UsD 015 65.04 9.63 034 64.84 21.94 0.83 66.33 55.20

The Company’s exposure in respect of foreign cursency denominated financial assets not hedged by derivative instruments or others as folfows-
Asat 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 As at1 April 2016
Antount in

Exchange Rate  Amount in INR forelgn Exchange Rt Amount in INR

Amount in forcign

Amonnt in foreig gy g Rate  Amownt in INR

Currency
currency currency .
currency
JSD 0.98 65.04 63.84 101 65.84 65.41 0.62 66.33 4139
Sensitivity analysis
A Dbly possible i of the Indinn Rupes ogainst below cursencies at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 would have affected the of financial i inated in foreign currency

3 § 3
and affected Statement of Profit and Loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis is performed on foreign currency denominated monetary financial assets and finnncial Habilities outstanding as at the year end. This analysis

assumes (hat all other variables, in particulnr interest rates, remain constant.

Partioul Staternent of Profit & Loss Statement of Profit & Loss
erticulars far the year ended 31 March 2018 for the year ended 31 March 2011

1% depreciation/ appreciation in Indian Rupecs Gain/(loss) on Gain/(loss) on Gafn/(loss) on

against appreciation depr ion appreciation depreciation

UsD 034 .34 043 633
.54 (.54 043 (0.43)

The foliowing significant exchange rate spplied during the year

Particulars Average exchange rate per unit Reporting date rate per unit

Asat Asat

W6-17 21218 31 Marh 201831 March 2017

ush 67.0% 64.43 65.04 64.84

USD: United States Daltar




NDTV Convergence Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
{All amounts in INR miltions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 33: Larnings / (loss) per share (EPS)

The caleulations of profit/ (loss) atiributable to equity sharcholders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for purposes of earnings/ (10ss) per share

caleulations are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
i 31 March2018 31 Mareh 2017

Profit / (loss) for the year - (A) 206.81 (5.61)
Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares .

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 66,671 o~ 66,671
Number of equity shares owstanding at the end of the year 66,671 . 66,671
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year - (B) 66,671 66,671
Face value of each equity share (INR) 10 10
Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per equity share ( in absolute terms ) (INR) - (AY(B) 3,101.91 (84.22)
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NDTYV Convergence Limited

Notes to the financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in INR millions, unless othenvise stated)

Note 35: Employee benefits

(i) Gratuity

Graluity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement or separation from the Company. The following table seis out the status of the defined benefit plan as required under

IND AS 19 - Employee Benefits:

(a) Movenient in defined henefit obligation:

. Defined benefit
Particulars g
obligation

Balance as at 1 April 2016 11.56
Current service cost ’ 213
Interest expense 0.88
Total amount recognised in profit o' loss 3.01
Remeasurements . .

Loss from change in financial assumptions 1.52

Experience losses 0.20
Total amount r 3 in other compr ive income 1.72
Benefit payments (0.60)
Balanee as at 31 March 2017 15.69
Balance as at 1 April 2017 15.69
Current service cost 292
Interast expense . 1.18
Past service cost 3.64
Total amount recognised in profit or'loss 7.74
Remeasurements

Loss from change in demographic assumpticns 1.42

Loss from change in financial assumptions 1.13

Experience losses 0.84
Total amount recognised in other comy ive income 3.39
Benefit payients (3.02)
Balanee as at 31 March 2018 23.80

The net liability disclosed above relates to unfunded plans are as follows:

Particulars Asat Asat Asat

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Present value of funded obligations 23.80 15.69 11.56
Deficit of funded plan 23.80 . 15.69 11.56
Unfunded plans - - -
Deficit of gratuity plan 23.80 15.69 11.56

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, govemed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, 10
gratuity at the rate of fiftecn days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concemed.




NDTYV Convergence Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Al amounts in INR mitlions, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Assumptions:

1, Economic assumptions

Particulars Asat Asat s Asat
. 31 March 2018 3§ March 2017 1 April 2016
Discownt rate 7.80% 71.50% 7.70%
70% for Ist year,] 20% for Istyear, 20% for 1st year,
15% for 2nd vear,| 15% for 2nd year,] 15% for 2nd year,
Salary growth rate 10% for 3rd year,]  10% for 3rd year,|  10% for 3rd year,
7.5% for Mh year] 7.5% for 4th year|  7.5% for 4th year
and 5% thereafier, and 5% thereafier. %, g]

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market vields of goventment bonds as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.
The salary escalation rate is based on estimates of salary increases, which takes into account inflation, promotion and other relevant factors.

2. Demographic assumptions:
Parvticulars Asat Asat Asat
i ) 31 March 2018 | . 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Withdrawal rate, based on completed vear of services

upto 5 years ., 30.00% 30.00% 30.00%
Above 5 years 3.00% 3.00%| 3.00%
Moriality rate (% of TALM 06-08) 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%:
Retirement age {vears) 58] 62 62

(c) Sensitivity aualysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below.

Tmpact on defined henefit obligation
Change in assumption Inerease in pli - Decrease in P
Particulars Asant Asat Asat Agat Asat As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 {31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Discount rate 1% i% (2.55) (1.79) 3.03. 2.17
Salary growth rate 1% 1% 220 1.10 (2.00)] (1.13)
Attrition rate 50% 50% 1.26 0.63 (1.54) (0.93)
Mortality rate 10% 10% 0.03 0.04 (0.03) (0.04)

" Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.




NDTV Convergence Limited
Notes to the financial statenents for the year ended 31 Mareh 2018
- (All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)
Note 36; Contingent liabilities
A. Contingent liabilitics
Bank guatantees for INR.0.10 million (31 March 2017: INR.0.10 milfion, 1 April 2016:
under sales tax authorities.

Note 37: Lease commitments

A. Non-cancellable operating leases

INR.0.10 million) in favour of government authorities towards registration

The Company has taken various commercial premises under cancellable operating leases. The rental expense for the current year, in respect of operating feases is INR

21.29 million (31 March 2017: INR 19.86 million). The Company has also taken commercial premises on

minimum lease payments in respect of such leases are as follows:

lease which have non-cancellable periods. The future

Particulars As at Asat Asat
artiadiars 31 March2018 31 March 2017 I April 2016
Within less than one year 048 - 0.73
Total minimum Iease payments 0.48 - 0.73

Note 38 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief O
AS 108. The CODM is considercd to be Board of directors who makes strategic decisions and is res
operating segments. The principal activities of the Company comprises of online/digital broadcast media. Accordingly, the Company has one re|

consisting of online/digital broadcast media.

Note 39: Disclosure of Specific Bank Notes {SBNs)

ponsible for allocating resources and assessing

perating Decision Maker (“CODM") as required under Ind
pecformance of the
portable segments

The disclosure regarding details of specific bank notes held and transacted during 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 has not been made since the requirement

does not pertain to financial year ended 31 March 2018. Corresponding antounts as a
have been disclosed as given below:

ppearing in the audited financial statements for the year ended 31

Other
Particulars SBNs* denomination Tatal
) Notes
Closing Cash in hand as on November 08, 2016 0.01 0.01 0.02
(+) Permitted receipts - 0.09 " 0.09
(-) Permitted payments - 0.05 0.05
(<) Amount deposited in Banks 0.01 - 0.01
Closing Cash in hand as on December 30,2016 - i} 0.05 0.05

# For the purposes of this clause, the term ‘Specified Bank Notes' shall have

Minisnry of Finaice, Department of Econouic Affairs mumber $.0.3407 (), dated the 8th November, 2016.

Note 40 : Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

March 2017

the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India, in the

. . . As at As at As at

Particuiars NoteNo. | 51 March 2018 | 31 March 2047 | 1 April 2016
Current assets
Trade receivables 9 459.92 548.86 465.75

" |Cash and cash equivalents 10 - - 3440
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents mentioned above 11 - - 31.67
Other financial assets 12(b) - - 4061
Other current assets 14 - - 251.14
Investments 5 10542 55.32 -
Total current assets 565.34 604.18 §23.57
Non-current assets
Property, plant and cquipment 3 14.59 15.41 12,51
Capital work-in-progress - - 0.36
Intangible assets 4 10.33 17.17 24.18
Other financial assets 12(a) - - -
Total non-current assets 24.92 32,58 37.05
Total assets pledged as security 590.26 636.76] 860.62
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NDTV Convergence Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 42: Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

During the current year, the CSR Comnittee reviewed the CSR policy and decided t.o.not spend towards the CSR activities due to financial commitments of the
Company. Thus, pursuant to Section 135 introduced by Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to Corporate Social Responsibility, the Company has contributed INR

Nil (31 March 2017: INR Nil) towards the CSR activities.

Note 43: First time adoption of Ind AS

These are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) as notified under section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013, read together with Rute 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, with effect from 1 April 2016, with transition date of 1 April 2016, pursuant to the notification issued by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 16 February 2015. Accordingly, the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, the comparative’ information

presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the opening Ind AS balance sheet as at 1 -April 2016 have been prepared in

accordance with Ind AS. )
The accounting policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, the comparative information

presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31 ‘March 2017 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS Statement of Financial Position at 1 April
2016 (the Company’s date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance shect, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial
statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant
provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its financial statements
prepared in accordance with previous GAAP and how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial

performance and cash flows.

A. Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions

Following applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions have been applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Ind AS optional exemptions availed

(1) Deemted cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
As per Ind AS 101, an entity may elect to use carrying values of all property, plant z_md equipment and other intangible assets as recognised in the financial
statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the Previous Indian GAAP and use that as its deeimed cost as at the date of transition.

Accordingly, the Company has clected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

(2) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
Tud AS 101 includes an optional exemption that permits an entity to apply the relevant requirements in Appendix C of Ind AS 17 for determining whether a
-ansition contains a lease. If the entity elects the optional exemption, then it assesses whether the lease

confract or an arrangement existing at the date of tr
contracts / arrangements existing at the date of transition contain lease are based on the. facts and circumstances existing at that date except where the effect is
expected not to be material. The Company has elected to apply this exemption on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as at the transition date.

(3) Investment in subsidiarics and associates
ue with the carrying value for all of its investment in subsidiaries and associates as recognised in the

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to contin !
finaucial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its investments in subsidiaries and associates at their Previous GAAP carrying value.

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

(1) Estimates

As per Ind AS 101, an entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS
in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference
svere in tror.

Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2016 are cousistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company made estimates

for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:

—Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at Fair value through profit and loss.
- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.
- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost.

at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date
in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates

'(2) Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of Fnancial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of

transition to Ind AS. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accousited at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the
date of transition, if retrospective application is impracticable. Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and
circumstances that exist on the date of transition. Measurement of the financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done vetrospectively, except where

the same is impracticable.




NDTV Convergence Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

B. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations
from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

(i) Reconciliation of equity as at date of transition (1 April 2016)
Notes to {‘n.st-hmc Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind AS
adeption -
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12.51 - -~ 12.51
Capital work-in-progress 0.36 - 0.36
Intangible assets 24.18 - 24.18
Financial assets
Investments 131.92 - 131.92
Loans 2 301.57 (235.03) 66.54
Other financial assets 10.69 - 10.69
Income tax assets (net) 84.20 - 84.20
Deferred tax assets (net) 4 6.08 . 1.62 7.69
Other non-current assets 7.49 - 7.49
Tatal non-current assets 579.00 (233.41) 345.59
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 5 470.42 4.67) 465.75
Cash and cash equivalents 34.40 - 34.40
Bauk balarices other than cash and cash equivalents mentioned above 31.67 - 31.67
Other financial assets i 40.61 - ' 40.61
Other current assets 2 26.80 224.34 251.14
Total current assets 603.90 219.67 823,57
Total assets . 1,182.90 (13.74) 1.169.15
Equity and Habilities
Equity
Equity share capital 0.67 - : 0.67
Other equity 497.93 (11.34) 486.59
"Total equity 498,60 (11.34) 487.26
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings : 146.43 - 146.43
Other financial liabilities 3 50.00 ) (39.17) 10.83
Provisions 1112 - 1112
Total non-current liabilities : 207.55 (39.17) 168.38
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 263.75 - 263.75
Other financial liabilities 141.22 - 141.22
Provisions 0.44 - 0.44
Other current liabilities 3 71.33 36.77 108.10
Total current liabilities 476,74 36,77 513.51
Total liabilities 684.29 o (240) 681.89
Total equity and liahilities 1,182.89 (13.74) 1,169.15
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

(All amounts in INR millions, unless othervise stated)

(it) Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2017

. Previous GAAP# Adjustments Ind AS
adeption
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 15.41 - 15.41
Intangible assets 17.17 - 17.17
Financial assets
Investments 1 54.47 282 57.29
Loans 2 551.57 (423.00) 128.57
Income tax assets {net) 66.65 - -~ 66.65
Deferred tax assets (net) 4 8.85 230 11.15
Other non-current assets 0.82 - 0.82
Total non-current assets 714.94 (417.88) 297.06
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 5 557.41 (8.54) 548,87
Cash and cash equivalents 62.90 - 62.90
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents mentioned above 510 v - 5.10
Other financial assets 37.83 - 37.83
Other current assets 2,7 30.76 405,77 436.53
Total curvent assets 694.00, 397.23 1.091.23
Total assets 1,408,94 (20,65) 1,388.29
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 0.67 - 0.67
Other equity 504.68 (20.65) 484.03
Total equity 505.35 (20.65) 484,70
Liabilities
Non-current liabilitics
Financial labilities
Borrowings 457.19 - 457.19
Provisions 15.09 - 15.09
Total non-current linbilities 472.28 - 472.28
Current liabilities
Financial labilities
Bomrowings 4478 - 4478
Trade payables 243.06 - 243.06
Other financial Habilities 36.80 - 36.80
Provisions 0.60 - 0.60
Other current labilities 106.07 - 106.07
Total current liabilities 431.31 - 431.31
Total liabilities . 903.59 - 903,59
‘Total equity and liabilities 1,408.94 (20.65) 1.388.29]

Notes to first-time
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the ye

ar ended 31 March 2017
Notes to first time

Previous GAAP*

. Adjustments Ind AS
adoption
Income
Revenue from operations 3 1,217.93 4.29) 1,213.65
Other ingome 1,2 24.98 12.63 37.61
Total income 1.242.91 8.35 1.251.26
Expenses
Production expenses 2 256.22 10.74 266.96
Employee benefit expense 6 326.79 (1.72) 325.07
Finance costs 3 67.68 0.44 68.12
Depreciation and amortisation expense 12.42 oo . 12.42
Operations and admustration expenses 5,7 183.52 (1.25) 182.27
Marketing, distribution and promotion expenses 23 193.65 8.40 202.05
‘T'otal expenses 1,040.28 16.61 e 1,056.89
Profit before tax 202.63 (8.26) 194.37
Exceptional items 130.08 - 130.08
Profit before tax 72,55 (8.26) 64,29
Income’tax expense
Current tax 72,77 - 72.77
Deferred tax 4 (2.78) (0.09) (2.87
Total tax expenses 69.99 (0.09) 69.90
Profit/(loss) for the year 2.57 {8.18) (5.61
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 6 - (1.72) {1.72)
Income tax relating to these items 4 - 0.60 0.60
Otlher comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - (1.12) (1.12)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 2.57 ‘(9.‘29) .73
Earnings per equity share
Basic earnings / (loss) per share ( INR) 38.48 (84.22)
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share (INR) 38.48 (84.22)
* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
(iv) Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2016
Notes to first Asat Asat
time adoption 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per previous GAAP 505.35 - 498.60
Adjustments:
Effect of measuring financial instruments at fair value/amortised cost 1,2,3 (19.53) (8.29)
Expected credit loss . 5 (8.54) (4.67)
Effect of amortisation of guarantee commission expense 7 5.12 -
Deferred tax on above 4 2.30 1.62
Total equity as per Ind AS 484.70 487.26
As per Financials 484.70 487.26



NDTV Convergence Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
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(v} Notes to reconcilintion between Previous GAAP to IND AS:

1) Non current investments

Under the previous GAAP, investments in mutual funds were classificd as long-term investments or current investments based on the mnj,nded holding period
and realisability. Long-tenn investments were carried at cost less provision for other than temporaty decline in.the value of such Investments. Current

. ; 5 ; ; i e m £ ir value.
investments were carried at lower of cost and fair value. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value

The resulting fair value changes of these investments have been recognised in the statement of profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2017. This
increased the profit by INR 2.82 million for the year ended 31 March 2017.

2) Seeurity deposits paid

Under the previous GAAP, interest free security deposits (that are refundable in cash on completion Offhc contract) are recc?rded at ‘!“‘ir tmnsacti,}qn ‘valuc. Undcr/
Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly, the Company has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS.

Consequent to this change, the amount of sceurity deposits decreased by INR 235.03 million as at 1 April 2016 and INR 423.00 million as at 31 March 2017.
The prepaid expenses has been increased by INR 224.34 million and by INR 400.64 million as at 1 April 2016 and 31 March ?917 respccnvely,.f o.tal equity
decreased by INR 10.69 million as on 1 April 2016. The profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 has decrca§efl by INR 141.67 million 'due to alpomsanon of the
prepaid expense of INR 21.48 million which is partially off-set by the notional interest income of INR 9.81 ’mﬂhon recogn'l,sed on security deposits.

3) Security depaosits reccived . y . .
Under the previous GAAP, interest free security deposits (that are payable in cash on completion of the contract) are recorded at mcxrvtransacuon value, Under
Ind AS, all financial liabilities are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly, the Company has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS,

Consequent to this change, the amount of security deposits decreased by INR 39.17 million as at 1 Apli} 2016. The deferred credit has increased by INR 36.77
million as at 1-April 2016 and total equity has increased by INR 2.40 million as at 1 April 2016. The proﬁt.for. the year ended '3] March 2017 has bef:nAdecreased
by INR 2.39 million due to interest expense on security deposit of INR 0.4 million and reversal of amortisation of deferred income of INR 2.91 million, which

is partially off-set by amortisation of deferred income of INR 0.96 million. ) gt PN ;
Further, under the previous GAAP cash discount of INR 2.34 million offered is disclosed as an expense under the head "Matketing, distribution and promotion

expenses”, however, under Ind AS the same has been adjusted against revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017. There is no impact on profit for the year ended
31 March 2017,

4) Deferred tax . . : § .
Under the previous GAAP, deferred taxes were recognised for the tax effect of timing difference between accounting profit and taxable profit for the year using

the income statement approach. Under Ind AS, deferred taxes are recognised using the balance sheet for‘ﬁmu'e‘filx consequences of temporary differences
between the carrying valie of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. The above diff’eren‘ces together with the c(?nﬁequenualtax impact of the other
Ind AS transitional adjustments lead to setting up of deferred tax asset of INR 1.62 million as at 1 April 2016 and INR 2.30 million as at 31 March 2017.

5) Trade receivable R e .
Under the previous GAAP, allowance for doubtful debts is recognized based on the specific assessment of individual customers. Under Ind AS 109, the

Company is required to apply expected credit Joss model for recognising the allowance for doubtful debts or for i‘m‘pairment of financial assets. As a result, the
retained earnings has decreased by INR 4.67 million as at 1 April 2016 and the profit has decreased by INR 3.87 million for the year ended 31 March 2017,

Consequently, the allowance for doubtful debts has increased by INR 4.67 million as at 1 April 2016 and by INR 8.54 million as at 31 March 2017.

6) Remensurement of post-em ployment benefit obligations R . . .

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net
defined benefit obligation are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of statement of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements

were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended 31 March. 2017 increased by INR 1.72 million and

simultaneously decreased the other comprehensive income by INR 1.72 million. There is no impact on the total equity as at 31 March 2017,

7) Guarantee commission R . - .
Under the previous GAAP, guarantee commission expenses was charged to profit or loss in the year in which guarantee feceived. Under Ind AS, Guarantee

commission expense is amortised on straight line basis over the period of guarantee received. As a result of this, prepaid expense has been increased by INR 5.12
million as at 31 March 2017 and also the profit for the year ended 31 March has increased by the same amount. :

8) Retained earnings . .
Retained eamings as at 1 April 2016 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.
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9) Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or penmits
otherwise. Ttems of income and expense that are not recoguised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as ‘other comprehensive income’
includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.
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